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To:  Sen. Claire Ayer, Chairperson, Senate Health & Welfare Committee 
        Sen. Tim Ashe, Chairperson, Senate Finance Committee 
 Rep. Michael Fisher, Chairperson, House Health Care Committee 
 
From:  Susan L. Donegan, Commissioner, Department of Financial Regulation (DFR) 
 
Date:   January 15, 2013 
 
Re:  Recommendation on Guidelines for Distinguishing Between Primary and Specialty 

Mental health Services and Estimate of the Impact on Health Insurance Premiums 

Legislative directive 
 
Section 11c. of Act 171 asks that I make a recommendation to your committees regarding   
“.  .  . guidelines for distinguishing between primary and specialty mental health services, 
taking into consideration factors such as mental health providers’ scope of practice and 
patterns of patient visitation.  In addition, the commissioner . . . shall provide the 
committees with an estimate of the impact on health insurance premiums if such guidelines 
are enacted into law.” 
 
Following this, Section 11e. states: “No later than October 1, 2013, the commissioner of 
financial regulation shall adopt rules pursuant to V.S.A. chapter 25 establishing the 
guidelines for distinguishing between primary and specialty mental health services 
developed pursuant to Section 11c. of this act, taking into account any recommendations 
received from the committees of jurisdiction.” 
 

Distinguishing primary and specialty mental health & substance abuse services 
 
In preparing the recommendation on guidelines, called for in Section 11c., DFR consulted 
with a wide array of stakeholders, providers, and staff of state agencies.1    Based on 
providers’ scope of practice and patient visit patterns, there was consensus among them that 

1 Included were representatives from the Department of Vermont Health Access, University of Vermont/Fletcher 
Allen Health Care, Vermont Council of Developmental & Mental Health Agencies, Vermont Department of Mental 
Health, Vermont Division of Alcohol & Substance Abuse Programs, Vermont Psychiatric Association, Vermont 
Psychological Association as well as several Designated Mental Health Agencies and practicing licensed mental 
health counselors, licensed clinical social workers, and licensed master’s level psychologists.  
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those procedure codes which define routine, outpatient mental health and substance abuse 
services should be defined as primary care.  As such, they would be assessed a co-pay equal 
to the co-pay for primary care medical services, rather than the specialty care co-pay rate 
currently charged for these procedure codes. The complete list of codes that would be 
affected is included at the end of the attached letter from Oliver Wyman. 
 

Analysis of premium impact 
 
DFR then engaged the actuarial firm, Oliver Wyman, to calculate an estimate of the premium 
impact of providing these proposed primary mental health and substance abuse services at 
parity with primary medical care services. Their analysis is the first attachment to this memo.  
In brief, Oliver Wyman found that: 

 
• the premium impact is estimated to be only 0.11% for every $5.00 decrease in co-pay 

in 2013. For example, Table 7 in their letter indicates that a $10 decrease in co-pay 
would result in an increase in premium of $1.14 per month for single person coverage 
and 
$2.97 for family coverage in 2013 (or $13.68 per year and $35.64 per year respectively); 

• as a result of the metallic level requirements for plans in the exchange, the projected 
premium impact in the individual and small group market is estimated to be 0% in 
2014; and furthermore, 

• a separate analysis of induced utilization (i.e.- the phenomenon that consumers will 
utilize more services when cost sharing requirements are reduced) indicated an 
increase in premiums of less than $0.02 per member per month for each $5 decrease 
in the co- pay. 

 

Response from insurance industry 
 
The Oliver Wyman analysis was sent to Blue Cross and Blue Shield, Cigna, and MVP for 
their comments. Cigna responded by noting that they agreed with the actuarial analysis, but 
offered no comments on reducing the co-pay for mental health and substance abuse services. 
MVP indicated that its own actuarial analysis of this change had been delayed. This had not 
been received at the time my memo was prepared. 

 
KSE Partners, on behalf of Blue Cross and Blue Shield, sent a memo on January 2, 2013, 
(Attachment 2) including an earlier memo from September 28, 2012, (Attachment 3) 
concerned that reducing co-pays have a tendency to increase both premiums and utilization. 
They state that “multiple, seemingly small, increases also have a cumulative impact on 
affordability.” KSE also noted Oliver Wyman’s comment (related to exchange plans) that, by 
increasing mental health and substance abuse benefits, plans would need to reduce other 
benefits in order for the actuarial value to be unchanged in exchange plans, if it resulted in a 
greater than +/-2% de minimis threshold for the exchange metallic levels. If this is the case, 
KSE asks for guidance on which “other benefits” Blue Cross and Blue Shield should or could 
reduce. 
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DFR comments 
 
Regarding speculative concerns that reducing mental health and substance abuse co-pays 
might increase utilization and premiums, it could also be argued that lower co-pays will 
encourage members to seek needed care earlier and that the resulting savings from avoided ER 
services and inpatient care could more than offset the increased office visit utilization. 

 

A follow up with Oliver Wyman clarified that plans would not need to reduce other benefits, 
but that cost-sharing for other benefits might need to be revised – a change that would be at 
the discretion of the carriers. In fact, Oliver Wyman and the actuary for the Vermont exchange 
program indicated that the recommended change in the mental health and substance abuse co- 
pays would be within the +/-2% threshold for exchange metallic levels and would not 
necessitate a change in cost-sharing for other benefits. 

 

Department of Financial Regulation recommendation 
 
It is my department’s recommendation that the routine outpatient mental health and 
substance abuse codes, included in the attached Oliver Wyman letter, be designated as 
primary care and that they be subject to a reduced co-pay, equivalent to that charged by 
insurance plans for primary medical care services. We find that the premium impact will 
be small and worth the gain in advancing the state’s long term goals for mental health 
parity and integration. 

 

Next steps 
 
Pending any further recommendations made by your committees, my department will proceed 
to adopt rules to implement the recommendation outlined above by October 1, 2013, as 
required in Act 171. 
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M E M O R A N D U M 

TO: David Reynolds, HCA Deputy Commissioner 

FROM: Jacqueline A. Hughes, KSE Partners, LLP 

DATE:  January 2, 2013 

SUBJECT:  Comments on Primary/Specialty Mental Health Co-Payments Analysis 

On behalf of BCBSVT, we thank you for providing the opportunity to comment on the 
actuarial analysis that you circulated. We attach our earlier comments because they continue to 
reflect some of our concerns but we add a few additional comments in this memorandum.   

First, although the wording in the actuarial analysis minimizes the magnitude of the 
expected premium increases, the opinion does acknowledge that reducing cost share will 
increase premium. Each incremental reduction of cost sharing, small or large, will increase 
premium and thereby reduce premium affordability.  Multiple, seemingly small, increases also 
have a cumulative impact on affordability.  Negative impacts on affordability remain a concern 
even when the changes are proposed in order to advance desirable clinical or social goals.   

Second, we have a concern with the language in the analysis that states: "If the benefits 
for primary mental health and substance abuse services increase (i.e. cost sharing is reduced), 
plans would need to reduce other benefits so the actuarial value is unchanged." See, December 
20, 2012 Oliver Wyman analysis, Premium Impact, third paragraph.  This statement appears to 
be contrary to the requirement to provide the full range of mandated essential benefits. Health 
plans will need guidance on which "other benefits" should or could be reduced.  

Finally, the analysis acknowledges that there is a potential for induced increase in 
utilization but we have not independently analyzed or quantified the impact.   

Attachment 2



M E M O R A N D U M 

TO: David Reynolds, Deputy Commissioner of HCA 

FROM: Jackie Hughes, KSE Partners, LLP 

DATE:  September 28, 2012 

SUBJECT:  Parity for Mental Health Co-Payments and Parity for Primary Mental Health Care 
Services  

Thank you for the opportunity to provide input on the guidelines for distinguishing 
primary and specialty mental health and substance abuse (MH/SA) treatment services.  We offer 
the following comments on behalf of Blue Cross and Blue Shield of Vermont and The Vermont 
Health Plan, LLC.   

The Department has been tasked by the Vermont General Assembly with making 
recommendations on finance guidelines for distinguishing between primary and specialty mental 
health services taking into consideration factors such as mental health care providers’ scope of 
practice and patterns of patient visitation.  The Department has circulated a list of service codes 
that “MH/SA experts both within state government and from organizations and providers of 
MH/SA services” have provided to the Department as encompassing routine outpatient care.  
The same group has “recommended that these [service codes] should be subject to the same co-
pay charge as primary care medical services.”  The Department has also consulted with its 
actuary on the recommendations and she has concluded that the proposal would have no impact 
on premiums. 

The proposal to make essentially all office based services “primary” regardless of the 
providers’ scope of practice will have the tendency to increase both premiums and utilization. 
BCBSVT’s mental health utilization manager estimates that a decrease in cost share will increase 
the cost to the health plans, leading to increases in premium. Moreover, a lower cost share for 
members will have the tendency to increase their utilization of these services which in turn could 
mean a further increase in premiums. 

Attachment 3
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